
Beyond an Apple a Day
Providing Consumer Health Information at Your Library



Learning Objectives

 Basics of consumer health and health literacy

 Conduct appropriate health reference 

 Identify quality online health information 

 Identify, select, and provide appropriate health information for patrons

 Recall and locate at least one National Library of Medicine health resource

 Develop ideas to create health related programs and services



Consumer Health & 
Health Literacy



Health news and information



Consumer Health Questions

 “My mom is starting to forget things but how do I know if it’s Alzheimer’s?”

 “Why did my doctor put me on Prozac?”

 “I want to find more about that diet thing Dr. Oz talked about the other day.”

 “I just found out my son may have Marfan syndrome. Do you have a book about it?”

 “Will my electric meter give me cancer?”

 “Why is broccoli good for you?”



Consumer Health – Then and Now

1972  Patient Bill of Rights

Realities of Health Care today:
 Patients are now asked to make decisions about their own disease process
 Most patients do not have the tools or knowledge to make fully informed 

decisions
 Health literacy
 Libraries can help!



Quiz: Health Status
What is the strongest predictor of an individual’s health status?

 Age

 Income

 Employment status

 Education

 Literacy skills  

 Cultural background



Quiz: Fill in the Blanks

 One out of ? American adults reads at the 5th grade level or below.
1 out of 5

 The average American reads at the 8th to 9th grade level, yet most health 
care materials are written above the ? grade level.

10th grade level

National Partnership for Women and Families – Health Literacy & Plain Language Overview 

http://go.nationalpartnership.org/site/DocServer/Health_Literacy_Overview.pdf?docID=5621


What is Health Literacy?

“Health literacy is the degree to which individuals have the 
capacity to obtain, process, and understand basic health 
information and services needed to make appropriate health 
decisions.”

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 2000. Healthy People 2010, 2020. 
Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office.

https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-health/interventions-resources/health-literacy


Why Health Literacy is Important

 Access health care services
 Analyze relative risks and benefits
 Calculate dosages
 Communicate with health care providers
 Evaluate information for credibility and quality
 Interpret test results
 Locate health information



Health Literacy Requires
 Basic literacy
Numeracy
 Biology
 Computer literacy
Media literacy
 Cultural and linguistic competency
Digital literacy

Health Literacy Quick Guide, Health.gov

https://health.gov/communication/literacy/quickguide/factsbasic.htm


The Cost of Health Literacy

 poorer comprehension of 
nutrition labels 
 less likely to act on public health 

alerts
 less likely to use preventative 

services 
 more likely to skip tests

 less likely to adopt healthy 
behaviors
 struggle to manage chronic 

diseases 
 misunderstand prescription labels 

or instructions 
 more emergency room visits
 more preventable hospital 

admissions 
Office of Disease Prevention and Health. (2010). National action plan to improve 

health literacy. Washington, DC: Department of Health and Human Services. 

https://health.gov/communication/hlactionplan/pdf/health_literacy_action_plan.pdf


Health Literacy videos

American Medical Association Health Literacy video

American College of Physicians Health Literacy video

https://youtu.be/cGtTZ_vxjyA
https://youtu.be/ImnlptxIMXs


Role of Libraries
Healthier Communities



Public Libraries
Universally supported 

(almost)
 Are essential to community 

well-being
 Library systems support 95% 

of the population 
 Play a critical role in 

promoting child and adult 
literacy
 Sources of consumer health 

information



Libraries are Partners in a Healthy Community 

 Access to evidence-based 
up-to-date health 
information 
 Safe environment to conduct 

health information searches
Health related programming 

and outreach
Model health behavior with 

work place wellness



Healthier Communities
 Have higher rates of education 

 Stronger local economy

 Recover after a disaster more quickly and with less negative 
health issues

 Fewer chronic diseases including obesity

 Lower rates of chronic stress and mental fatigue

 Lower early death rates from cancer and diabetes



Evaluating Health Information



ABCs of Evaluation
 Accuracy

• Is the information based on 
sound medical research?

 Authority
• Who published the page?

 Bias
• Is the author using data 

improperly to promote a position 
or a product?

 Currency
• When was the page last updated?

 Coverage
• Are there sources given for 

additional information?
Usability

• Is it user friendly and easy to 
navigate?

NNLM Consumer Health guides

https://nnlm.gov/initiatives/topics


Trust It or Trash It?

Trust It or Trash It

http://www.trustortrash.org/


Class exercise – evaluating websites



Resources



Google results

179,000,000 results



MedlinePlus results

748 results

Autism health topic page



MedlinePlus
 Links to reliable, authoritative

health websites
 Drugs | supplements | herbs
 Medical tests 
 Medical encyclopedia 
 Social media presence
 MedlinePlus Magazine
 Easy to Read Materials
 Links to local services
 English, Spanish and other 

languages
 No Advertisements!

MedlinePlus
https://medlineplus.gov/

https://medlineplus.gov/


MedlinePlus- health topic search



MedlinePlus- health topic page



Searching MedlinePlus – search box

(National Library of Medicine)
indicates a health topic page



MedlinePlus- videos & tools



MedlinePlus- videos & tools examples



NIH- National Institutes of Health

NIH https://www.nih.gov/

https://www.nih.gov/


NIH- 27 institutes and centers



Multi-lingual and Multi-cultural
MedlinePlus and other resources



NIH and MedlinePlus- Spanish

NIH information in Spanish https://salud.nih.gov/ MedlinePlus in Spanish

https://salud.nih.gov/
https://medlineplus.gov/spanish/


MedlinePlus- multiple languages



HealthReach

Multilingual and multicultural
Health education materials in 
various languages and formats 
Provider information 
National collaboration
Submit your resources

HealthReach

https://healthreach.nlm.nih.gov/


HealthReach- patient materials



Drug Information
Including herbal and supplements



MedlinePlus- Drugs & Supplements



MedlinePlus- drug information



MedlinePlus- herbs and supplements



National Center for Complementary and 
Integrative Health (NCCIH)

Health topics
 How to make health 

decisions
 Herbs at a Glance
 Safety Information
 Know the Science 

NCCIH

https://nccih.nih.gov/


NCCIH- Herbs



NNLM class - Will Duct Tape Cure My Warts?

Will Duct Tape Cure My Warts

 Have knowledge of the 
definition and types of 
Complementary and 
Alternative Medicine (CAM).
 Have greater knowledge of 

the history of CAM and its 
impact on medical practice.
 Have greater understanding 

of usage of CAM.
 Become more proficient in 

searching for evidence of the 
effectiveness of CAM.

https://nnlm.gov/classes/will-duct-tape-cure-my-warts-examining-complementary-and-alternative-medicine


Pillbox
Pillbox

https://pillbox.nlm.nih.gov/index.html


Specific Health Topics
Diet, exercise, cancer, mental health, substance abuse



MedlinePlus diet and exercise



Go4Life

Go4Life

https://go4life.nia.nih.gov/


MedlinePlus- Cancers



National Cancer Institute

National Cancer Institute https://www.cancer.gov/

https://www.cancer.gov/


MedlinePlus- Mental/Behavioral Health



MentalHealth.gov and SAMHSA

MentalHealth.gov SAMHSA

https://www.mentalhealth.gov/
https://www.samhsa.gov/


National Institute of Mental Health

National Institute of Mental Health

https://www.nimh.nih.gov/index.shtml


MedlinePlus- Substance Abuse Problems



National Institute on Alcohol Abuse & Alcoholism
NIAAA

https://www.nimh.nih.gov/index.shtml


National Institute on Drug Abuse
NIDA

https://www.drugabuse.gov/


Collection Development
• Look for book lists from other institutions
 Medical Library Association
 Health science libraries
 Other libraries

Medical Library Association books

“What criteria do consumer health librarians 
use to develop library collections?” 

https://www.mlanet.org/page/books
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3988777/


Give it a try

• A patron brings in their cholesterol tests results and wants to know if 
their levels are in the normal range. Where would you go to locate 
this information? 

• The news has recently been reporting that your community has had a 
high rate of sexually transmitted diseases. What resources would you 
highlight to bring awareness of this health outbreak and provide 
helpful information regarding a topic patrons may find embarrassing?



Health Reference
Privacy, ethics, tips



Factors Impacting Information-Seeking Behavior

 Patients and caregivers may be fearful, angry, 
overwhelmed, disillusioned, or depressed. Emotions 
play a role in how they approach the library staff.

 Factors: age, gender, literacy level, socioeconomic 
background, culture, language.



Reference Skills

 Combination of knowledge and experience
Good evaluation skills
 Quality of information

Understanding the patron 
 Health issues can cause stress, anger, sadness or other emotions
 Cultural differences

 The library staff person’s reaction and communication can help 
diffuse situations



Topic and Scope

 Many categories of health information
 Diseases, treatments, prevention, causes

 Health questions can be complex

 How much detail is needed?

What level of information is needed?

What format(s) would be most appropriate?



The Health Reference Interview
 Provide a welcoming environment
 Be an active listener
 Use open ended questions
 Be prepared for emotions
 Be aware of body language
 Verify medical terms and spellings
 Repeat patron’s question to verify what is wanted
 Consider creating a form with prepared questions either for you and the 

patron to fill out together



Ethical Guidelines

 Privacy / Confidentiality

 Do not interpret medical information

 Don’t offer personal experiences

 Know your limits and limits of collection/information access 

 Do not be afraid to refer the patron back to his/her health care 
provider

 Use a disclaimer or caution statement



Disclaimers / Caution Statements

• “Materials in the Resource Center represent the opinions of the authors 
and are intended as a complement, not a substitute for the advice of your 
healthcare providers.”

• “You should not act or rely upon any of the resources and information 
available in or from this website without seeking the advice of a physician 
or other healthcare provider.”



Class Exercise – Role Playing

What did the library staff do correctly?
What could have been done differently?



Health Reference class
On-demand
 Asynchronous 
 Interactive 
 Self-paced
 Topics include:
 Conducting health reference
 Confidentiality and ethics
 Evaluating online health 

information

Introduction to Health Reference

https://nnlm.gov/classes/introduction-health-reference-ethics-and-best-practices


Outreach
Programs and services



Demographics

• Analyze the demographics of your community
 CDC FastStats

 Kaiser State Health Facts

 County Health Rankings

 Census Bureau

 Rural Health Information Hub

http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/fastats/state-and-territorial-data.htm
http://www.statehealthfacts.org/
http://www.countyhealthrankings.org/
https://www.census.gov/
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/visualizations


Programs and Services

 Bookmarks
 Links to health websites (subject 

guides)
 Brochures
 Health kiosk
 Lecture series
 Health screenings
 Newsletter

 Social media
 Health fairs
 Community events (exhibit table/guest 

speaker)
 Health tech tools
 Consumer health database searching 

series
 Others?



National Health Observances

NNLM National Health Observances tools

https://nnlm.gov/all-of-us/national-health-observances


Book Discussion Kits

Graphic Medicine Book Club Discussion Guides

NNLM All of Us Reading Club

https://nnlm.gov/ner/graphic-medicine-book-club-kits
https://nnlm.gov/all-of-us/nnlm-reading-club


Programming Librarian

Programming Librarian 
Health and Wellness programs

http://www.programminglibrarian.org/ideas/topic?topic=948
http://www.programminglibrarian.org/ideas/topic?topic=948


NLM Traveling Exhibits

NLM Traveling Exhibition Program

https://www.nlm.nih.gov/hmd/about/exhibition/index.html


Partner
 Health clinics
 Medical practices
 Local health department
 Schools / childcare centers
 Long term care facilities
 Places of worship
 Veterinarians / pet supply shops
 Historical societies



Collaborative Programs



NNLM Funding

 “That's My Medicine: Empowering Seniors to Identify and 
Utilize Personalized Health Information Online” 

Idaho State University
 “Meridian Moves”

Meridian Library District
 “Be Well Nampa”

Nampa Public Library



Professional Development
Classes, webinars, news, and more 



Learn more…
• Webinars and Online Classes 

(synchronous and asynchronous)
 NNLM Resource Picks (NLM 

resources)
 PNR Rendezvous (various topics)
 ABCs of DNA (genetics)

• On Demand Classes:
 EvalBasics (evaluation)
 Grants and Proposal Writing
 Serving Diverse Communities 

(cultural competency)

NNLM Training Schedule

https://nnlm.gov/pnr/training/schedule


Keeping updated

Healthy Community Tools for Public Libraries

https://publiclibrary.health/


In addition…



Thank You!

Carolyn Martin, MLS, AHIP 
Consumer Health Coordinator

National Network of Libraries of Medicine 
Pacific Northwest Region (NNLM PNR)

martinc4@uw.edu 
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